
  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: July 8, 2021 

TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

PLACE: 5th Floor Commission Chambers 
 Jackson County Tower Building 
 120 W. Michigan Avenue 
 Jackson, Michigan 49201 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order and pledge of allegiance 

2. Public comment [3 MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of minutes 

Approval of the June 10, 2021, meeting minutes [ACTION]  .....................................................................  3 

4. Approval of agenda 

Approval of the July 8, 2021, meeting agenda [ACTION] 

5. Request(s) for review, comment, and recommendation 

a. Consideration of township zoning amendment(s) 

(1) CZ | #21-15 | Leoni Township rezoning [ACTION]  .......................................................................  5 

(2) CZ | #21-16 | Pulaski Township text amendment [ACTION]  .....................................................  25 

(3) CZ | #21-17 | Summit Township rezoning [ACTION]  .................................................................  35 

b. Consideration of master plan(s) – None 

c. Farmland and Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s) – None 

6. Other business 

a. Unfinished business – Jackson County Master Plan 

(1) Future Land Use Map  ............................................................................................................  53 

b. New business – None 

7. Public comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner comment 

9. Adjournment 

The next scheduled meeting of the Jackson County Planning Commission is August 12, 2021 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #1 

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


This page is intentionally blank. 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #2 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING MINUTES 

June 10, 2021 
5th Floor Commission Chambers ● Jackson County Tower Building ● Jackson, Michigan 

Members Present: Mr. Timothy Burns, At Large; Mr. Roger Gaede, Environment; Ms. Pat Gallagher, 
At Large; Ms. Nancy Hawley, At Large; Mr. Ted Hilleary, Education; and Mr. Jim 
Videto, Agriculture 

 Members Absent: Mr. Eric Beda, Industry and Economics; Mr. Russ Jennings, At Large; and Mr. Co-
rey Kennedy, Jackson County Board of Commissioners; 

 Liaisons Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, Principal Planner 

 Others Present: Mr. Chris Breneman, Mr. Gerald Brown, and Mr. Jeff Vilminot 

Item 1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance. Chair Hawley called the meeting to order at 6:00 
p.m. Those in attendance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2. Public Comment. There was no public comment. 

Item 3. Approval of Minutes. Comm. Hilleary made a motion, seconded by Comm. Burns, to ap-
prove the May 13, 2021, meeting minutes as presented. The motion was approved unani-
mously. 

Item 4. Approval of the Agenda. Comm. Videto made a motion, seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to 
approve the June 10, 2021, meeting agenda as presented. The motion was approved unani-
mously. 

Item 5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation. 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) CZ | #21-12 | Leoni Township 

Staff summarized his report regarding the proposed rezoning of a property located 
at 4797 Page Road and known as Parcel ID #000-14-09-101-009-00, to ‘light indus-
trial (ML)’. Staff advised County Planning Commissioners to recommend disapproval 
of the rezoning (please see the staff report). Mr. Breneman and Mr. Vilminot spoke 
in favor of the rezoning, noting that it was originally zoned ‘ML’ (changed without 
the owner’s consent) and that the building is industrial in nature. They also provided 
documentation of other rezonings in the general area that do not coincide with the 
master plan. Commissioners discussed the proposal further among themselves and 
with Mr. Breneman and Mr. Vilminot. The hodgepodge of zoning in Leoni Township 
and inconsistencies in decision-making in Leoni Township were topics of discussion. 
So was the consistency of the staff advisement with the Master Plan. The possibility 
of taking no action due to those factors was also considered. 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #3 



06/10/21 JCPC Minutes Page 2 
 

Comm. Gaede made a motion, seconded by Comm. Gallagher, to concur with the 
staff advisement to recommend disapproval of the proposed ‘ML’ rezoning to the 
Leoni Township Board. Commissioners approved the motion by majority vote, with 
Comm. Videto and Comm. Gallagher voting no. 

(2) CZ | #21-13 | Leoni Township 

Staff summarized his report regarding the proposed rezoning of properties located 
on Flansburg Road and known as Parcel ID #000-14-18-227-002-01 and #000-14-18-
227-002-02, to ‘light industrial (ML)’. Staff advised County Planning Commissioners 
to recommend disapproval of the rezoning (please see the staff report). Comm. 
Hawley noted her concern regarding the wetlands. 

Comm. Videto made a motion, seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to concur with the staff 
advisement to recommend disapproval of the proposed ‘ML’ rezoning to the Leoni 
Township Board. Commissioners approved the motion unanimously. 

(3) CZ | #21-14 | Blackman Township 

Staff summarized his report regarding the proposed rezoning of two Cooper Road 
(M-106) properties known as Parcel ID #000-08-22-427-003-00 and #000-08-22-427-
004-00, to ‘heavy industrial (I-2)’. Staff advised County Planning Commissioners to 
recommend approval with comments of the rezoning (please see the staff report). 
Gerald Brown spoke in favor of the rezoning. 

Comm. Burns made a motion, seconded by Comm. Gaede, to recommend approval 
with comments of the proposed ‘I-2’ rezoning to the Blackman Township Board (see 
the staff report). Commissioners approved the motion unanimously. 

b. Consideration of Master Plan(s). None. 

c. Farmland & Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s). None. 

Item 6. Other Business. 

a. Unfinished Business – Jackson County Master Plan. 

Staff showed Commissioners the first draft of the Future Land Use map to be included in 
the Master Plan. It will be discussed at greater length at a future meeting. 

b. New Business. None. 

Item 7. Public Comment. None. 

Item 8. Commissioner Comment. None.  

Item 9. Adjournment. Chair Hawley adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by:  
Grant Bauman, Recording Secretary 

 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #4 



  
www.co.jackson.mi.us/county_planning_commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #21-15 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: July 1, 2021 

 Proposal: A rezoning in Leoni Township 

Request 
The subject property (4946 Page Road, ID #000-14-04-451-009-00) is proposed for rezoning from ‘gen-
eral business (B-4)’ to ‘light industrial (ML)’ (see the background information). 

Purpose 
The purpose provided is to make the property more marketable (see the Zoning Amendment Form).1 

Location and Size of the Property 
The subject property has an area of approximately 2.63 acres. Situated in Section 4 (T3S-R1E) of the 
Township, the property is located in the north side of Page Avenue, west of Ballard Road (see Figure 1). 

Land Use and Zoning 
Current Land Use – The subject property currently contains the Leoni Veterinary Hospital and is as-
sessed for ‘commercial’ use (see Figure 2). The property to the north and east is assessed for ‘residen-
tial’ uses. Properties to the south are assessed as ‘commercial’, ‘industrial’ or ‘industrial vacant’. Proper-
ties located to the west are assessed ‘residential vacant’. 

Future Land Use Plan – The Leoni Township Master Plan recommends ‘commercial’ uses for the sub-
ject property and the parcel to the north and east (see Figure 3). ‘Industrial’ uses are proposed for prop-
erties on the south side of Page Avenue. ‘Low density residential’ uses are recommended for parcels lo-
cated to the west. 

Current Zoning – The subject property is currently zoned ‘general business (B-4)’ as are other parcels 
located on the north side of Page Avenue (see Figure 4). Properties on the south side of Page Avenue 
are zoned ‘light industrial (ML)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 
Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sewer services are available according to the 
Township (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Public Road/Street Access – Page Avenue, a county primary roadway, provides direct access to the 
subject property. 

                                                 
1 Please note that this report lists the proposed use for informational purposes only. Do no utilize it in making the rezoning deci-
sion. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed zoning 
designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #5 



CZC | #21-15 Page 2 
 

Environmental Constraints – The subject property has no known environmental constraints accord-
ing to the Township (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Analysis and Recommendation 
Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Leoni Township Planning Commission 
recommends approval of the proposed rezoning of the subject property to ‘light industrial (ML)’ (see 
the attached Zoning Amendment Form and background information). 

Staff Analysis – Leoni Township has a Zoning Plan (an element of the Master Plan) which includes the 
following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the Master Plan. The Future Land Use Plan 

identified ‘commercial’ uses for the subject property. The Future Land Use Plan recommends 
industrial uses on the south side of Page Avenue, between Sixth Street/Maple Road and Ballard 
Road, not to the north (see Figure 3). 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

No. A ‘general business (B-4)’ zone is located on the north side of Page Avenue between Sixth 

Street/Maple Road and Ballard Road (see Figure 4). A ‘light industrial (ML)’ zone is currently lim-
ited to the south side of Page Avenue. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. It is unlikely that the rezoning would have a negative impact of public services and facilities. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

No. There is currently no ‘light industrial (ML)’ zoning on the north side of Page Avenue between 

Sixth Street/Maple Road and Ballard Road. 

A similar rezoning request located at the intersection of Page Avenue and Sixth Street was recom-
mended for disapproval by the JCPC on June 10, 2021 (see Figure 1). 

JCPC Staff Advisement – Based upon the analysis provided in his 
report, staff advises the County Planning Commission to recom-
mend DISAPPROVAL to the Leoni Township Board of the proposed 
rezoning of the subject property (ID #000-14-04-451-009-00) to 
‘light industrial (ML)’. 

Staff Report Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Leoni Township 

  

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #6 



CZC | #21-15 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 
Figure 2 

Property Assessment 

 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #7 



CZC | #21-15 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 
Figure 4 

Municipal Zoning 

 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #8 



CZC | #21-15 Page 5 
 

Figure 5 

Aerial Photo 

 
 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #9 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #10 

gbauman
Typewriter
21       15



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #11 

gbauman
Typewriter
21      15



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #12 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #13 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #14 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #15 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #16 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #17 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #18 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #19 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #20 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #21 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #22 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #23 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #24 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #21-16 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: July 1, 2021 

 Proposal: Medical and Recreational Marihuana Facilities in Pulaski Township 

Background Information 

Pulaski Township’s zoning ordinance currently allows various types of medical marihuana facili-
ties (e.g., grower facility, safety compliance facility, processor facility, secure transporter, and 
provisioning center) as permitted uses in its Agricultural District (AG-1), Local Commercial Dis-
trict (C-1), and Light Industrial District (I-1). The Township now proposes to amend those uses 
to allow for various types of facilities associated with recreational marihuana as well. Accord-
ingly, the following listings of permitted uses in the AG-1, C-1, and I-1 districts are proposed for 
amendment: 

SECTION 4.1.1 Agricultural District (AG-1): 
A. Permitted Uses: 

. . . 
11. State of Michigan licensed commercial Medical and Recreational Marihuana facilities 

limited to Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility and Secure 
Transporter 

. . . 
SECTION 4.3.1 Local Commercial District (C-1): 
A. Permitted Uses: 

. . . 
8. State of Michigan licensed commercial Medical and Recreational Marihuana facilities 

limited to Safety Compliance Facility,  and Secure Transporter, and Commercial Medical 
Marihuana Provisioning Centers and Commercial Recreational Marihuana Adult-Use Re-
tail Centers. 

. . . 
SECTION 4.4.1 Light Industrial District (I-1): 
A. Permitted Uses: 

. . . 
13. State of Michigan licensed commercial Medical and Recreational Marihuana facilities 

limited to Grower Facility, Safety Compliance Facility, Processor Facility, and Secure 
Transporter, and Commercial Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and Commercial 
Recreational Marihuana Adult-Use Retail Centers. 

. . . 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #25 



CZ #21-16 Page 2 

 

Staff Analysis and Advisement 

The proposed regulations simply allow certain types of recreational marihuana facilities to take 
place in the same location as their associated medical marihuana facilities. The actual uses are 
not likely to change in character. Consequently, staff has no issue with the amendments. 

The zoning ordinance currently contains definitions for the various types of medical marihuana 
facilities (e.g., grower facility, safety compliance facility, processor facility, secure transporter, 
and provisioning center). However, this amendment does not contain definitions for the pro-
posed recreational marihuana facilities. Consequently, staff suggests adding a definition for 
Commercial Recreational Marihuana Adult-Use Retail Centers to Section 2.2 (Definitions) of the 
zoning ordinance. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County 
Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH COM-
MENTS of the zoning ordinance amendments regarding med-
ical and recreational marihuana facilities to the Pulaski 
Township Board with the comments/suggestions made by 
staff (see the staff report). 

Staff Report Attachments: 

 Background information provided by Pulaski Township. 

 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #26 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #27 

gbauman
Typewriter
21      16a



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #28 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #29 

gbauman
Typewriter
21       16b



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #30 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #31 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #32 

gbauman
Typewriter
21       16c



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #33 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #34 



  
www.co.jackson.mi.us/county_planning_commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #20-17 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: July 1, 2020 

 Proposal: A rezoning in Summit Township 

Request 
The applicant proposes rezoning the subject properties (3440 Weatherwax Drive, A = ID #000-13-17-
287-060-00 and B = ID #000-13-17-287-057-06) to ‘general commercial (C-2)’ from ‘agricultural (AG-1)’ 
and ‘suburban residential (RS-2)’ (see Figure 1). 

Purpose 
“Retail sales and food service” is the purpose (see the Background Information).1 

Location and Size of the Property 
Parcel A has an area of approximately 1.939 acres and Parcel B has an area of approximately 0.606 acres 
(see Figure 1). The subject properties are located on the west side of Weatherwax Drive at Park Road, on 
the eastern edge of Section 17 (T3S-R1W) in Summit Township. 

Land Use and Zoning 
Current Land Use – The subject properties contain the Summit Landscape and Garden Center and are 
currently assessed for commercial use (see Figure 2). The Summit Park Assisted Living Center (assessed 
commercially) is located on the east side of Weatherwax Drive. 

Future Land Use Plan – The Township’s master plan places both of the subject properties in an area 
recommended for ‘commercial’ uses (see Figure 3). Given the presence of the Summit Park Assisted Liv-
ing Center, the FLUP recommends ‘high density residential’ on the east side of Weatherwax Road. 

Current Zoning – Parcel A is zoned ‘agricultural (AG-1)’, and Parcel B is zoned ‘suburban residential (RS-
2)’, as are all surrounding parcels on the west side of Weatherwax Road (see Figure 4). ‘Planned residen-
tial (PR-1)’ is located to the east. ‘General commercial (C-2) is located to the southeast. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 
Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sewer services are available (see the attached 
Zoning Worksheet Form). 

Public Road/Street Access – Weatherwax Drive, a paved county primary, provides access to both 
properties. 

                                                 
1 Please note that staff lists the proposed use for informational purposes only. Commissioners should not utilize it in making the 
rezoning decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the pro-
posed zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #35 



CZC | #21-17 Page 2 
 

Environmental Constraints –The Township identified no environmental constraints (see the attached 
Zoning Worksheet Form). 

Analysis and Recommendation 
Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Summit Township Planning Commission 
recommends approval of the proposed rezoning to ‘C-2’ (see the background information). 

Staff Analysis – Summit Township has a Zoning Plan (an element of the Master Plan) which includes 
the following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The Master Plan recommends ‘commercial’ uses on west side of Weatherwax Drive at Park 

Road (see Figure 3). 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. Properties on Weatherwax Drive to the southeast are already zoned ‘C-2’. The JCPC recom-

mended approval of a couple of rezonings located to the southeast on Weatherwax Road in 
2020 (see Figure 1); the Township adopted both of those rezoning requests. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Water and sewer services are available. Weatherwax Road, a paved county primary, should 

be able to accommodate the commercial development. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The properties are already used for commercial purposes and other commercial develop-

ment is already located along the corridor. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – The proposed ‘general commercial (C-2)’ rezoning conforms to the Town-
ship’s future land use map and meets all of the criteria upon which a rezoning should be considered. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning 
Commission to recommend APPROVAL of the ‘general commercial 
(C-2)’ rezoning request to the Summit Township Board (see the staff 
report). 

Staff Report Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Summit Township 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #36 



CZC | #21-17 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 
Figure 2 

Property Assessment 

 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #37 



CZC | #21-17 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 
Figure 4 

Municipal Zoning 

 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #38 



CZC | #21-17 Page 5 
 

Figure 5 

Aerial Photo 

 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #39 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #40 

gbauman
Typewriter
21         17



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #41 

gbauman
Typewriter
21       17



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #42 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #43 



Summit Township Planning Commission 
 

June 15, 2021 
 
Members Present- Jack Shelby, Chairman; Allan Hooper, Vice Chairman; Laurie Cunningham, 
Secretary; George Gancsos Jr., John Griffin, Board Liaison, Tom Beila, Robert Kendall, Mark 
Cesarz, Doug Beiswanger, John Worden, Summit Township Zoning Administrator. Gerry Deluca 
 

 
The meeting was called to order by Jack Shelby, Chairman at 6:00p.m. in the Township hall 2121 
Ferguson Rd 
 
A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by  George Gancsos Jr to approve the agenda. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by George Gancsos Jr, supported by Doug Beiswanger to approve the 
minutes of the April 20, 2021 meeting as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
Master Plan -Grant Bauman Region 2 Planning- Proposed Survey  
Grant Bauman reviewed additional revisions since last meeting, discussed the water/sewer 
Map and its verbiage on the map. Confusion on wording however the map is a jpg file and may 
not be changeable. 
A draft of the survey was reviewed based on input from the previous meeting. John Griffin 
suggested adding a question concerning the new Township office hours Monday – Thursday 7am 
to 5:30pm and closed Fridays. Board agreed to add as separate question, if satisfied yes or no. 
Discussion on how to get the survey out to the public and when it would be able. John Worden 
will help with getting it out to the public.  
 
Case #21-06-0004 & 0005- Rezoning from Agricultural (AG-1) and Suburban Residential (RS-2) 
To General Commercial (C-2) property located at 3440 Weatherwax and adjacent vacant lot. 
Doug Beiswanger left the meeting as a member to represent the applicant JL&B enterprises LLC 
c/o Andrew Bailey.  
Discussion and question about potential buyer stated on application (Retail and Food Services) 
D. Beiswanger informed the Commission there are no firm plans and the property is not under 
contract unnder currently. The owner wishes to sell and this rezoning to General Commercial 
would make it more saleable. A motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by George Gancsos 
Jr. to recommend to the Township Board the rezoning of the properties from Agricultural (AG-1) 
and Suburban Residential (RS-2) to General Commercial (C-3). Motion Carried, Doug Beiswanger 
abstained. 
 

  
Meeting adjourned by Jack Shelby 6:51 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,____________________  
Laurie Cunningham, Secretary 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #44 

gbauman
Highlight



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #45 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #46 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #47 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #48 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #49 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #50 



07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #51 



This page is intentionally blank. 

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #52 



0 2 4 6

Miles

I

HANOVER

HANOVER

LIBERTY COLUMBIA

BROOKLYN

NAPOLEON

NORVELL

LEONI

GRASS
LAKE

GRASS LAKE

HENRIETTA

WATERLOO

RIVES

TOMPKINS

SANDSTONE

BLACKMAN

SPRINGPORT

SPRINGPORT

PARMA

PARMA

CONCORD

CONCORD

SPRING
ARBOR

PULASKI

SUMMIT

JACKSON

Jackson County
Master Plan

""50

""99

""50

""52

""106

""124

""60

§̈¦94

§̈¦94

£¤127

£¤127

CEMENT CITY

Draft 2021 FutureDraft 2021 Future
Land Use Map #1Land Use Map #1

Map Date: 5/18/21

Legend

Agricultural Preservation

Developed Areas

07/08/21 JCPC Agenda Packet Page #53 


